F-2-84
Charles F. Wenner House Ca. 1840
938 Maple Avenue
Brunswick
Private

The Charles F. Wenner House is a two-story brick house with a rear brick
ell built about 1840, altered about 1878 with a two-story frame addition in the
angle between the two brick sections. The three-bay main elevation faces east
and has a one-story porch. A brick smokehouse with a pyramidal wood shingle
roof is located near the southwest corner of the house. Formerly the center of
a farm called Locust Grove, the house became part of Charles M. Wenner's Second
Addition to Brunswick with a rectangular lot around the house and the domestic
outbuildings, of which only the smokehouse and a non-contributing garage
remain. Charles M. Wenner was the son of Charles F. Wenner, whose name appears
on the 1873 Titus Atlas as the owner of this farm as well as several others in

the Brunswick vicinity. The house is a good example of a typical farm dwelling

of the period 1830-1850. The smokehouse is also a good representative of the

type.
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HISTORTC CONTEXT:

MARYIAND COMPREHENSIVE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PILAN DATA
Georgraphic Organization: Piedmont
(Harford, Baltimore, Carroll, Frederick, Howard, Montgomery
Counties, and Baltimore City)
chronological/Development Period:
Agricultural Industrial Transition A.D. 1815-1870
Industrial /Urban Dominance A.D. 1870-1930

Prehistoric/Historic Period Themes:
Architecture, Landscape Architecture and Community Planning

Resource Types:
Category: Building
Environment: Suburban
Function and Use:
Domestic/single dwelling/residence
Domestic/secondary structure/smokehouse

Known Design Source: None
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State Historic Sites Inventory Form

" ZOOMPN%\?ﬁg\h]DB?ﬁVENTORY oF Survey No. F-2-84
“HISTORIC PROPERTIES Magi No.
DOE yes no

1. Name

(indicate preferred name)

historic

Charles F. Wenner House

and/or common

%

2. Location

street & number

938 North Maple Avenue

— not for publication

city, town Brunswi ck —_vicinity of 6th congressional district

state Maryland county rederick

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

—__ district —__ public —X_ occupied ____ agriculture —___ museum

X building(s) _X_ private —— unoccupied —__ commercial —_ park

— structure _ both —_—work in progress —_ educational _X_ private residence

—___site Public Acquisition Accessible —— entertainment ——religious

— object — in process _X_vyes: restricted —__ government ___ scientific

—— being considered ____Yyes: unrestricted ____industrial _transportation
_Xx not applicable __no —_ military —__ other:

4. owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name

James H. and Mary R. Bell

street & number

938 N. Maple Avenue

telephone no.:

city, town Brunswick

Maryland 21716

state and zip code

S. Location of Legal Description

Frederick County Courthouse

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. liber 1040
street & number 100 W. Patrick Street folio 93

city, town Frederick state Maryland

6. Representation in Existing =istorical surveys

title

date —federal ___state ___ county ___ local
-epository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. F-2-84

Condition Check one Check one

X excelient —__ deteriorated ____ unaltered _X _ original site

- good - ruins _X__ altered ____moved date of move
____fair ____ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.
CONTRIBUTING RESOURCE COUNT: 2

The Charles F. Wenner House is a two-story brick dwelling built about 1840 with
a major two-story frame addition built in about 1878, located on the east side of
North Maple Avenue about 1/2 mile south of Souder Road in Brunswick, Frederick
County, Maryland. The principal elevation faces east and access to the property is
from Maple Avenue, leading to the rear or west elevation. The property also
includes a brick smokehouse probably dating from the 1840's and a non-contributing

garage.

The Wenner House has a one-story porch with turned columns and a dentil cornice
extending across the east elevation. The walls are 5:1 American bond and are
painted. The entrance is in the center bay and has a transom and sidelights with
plain surrounds. The windows are 2/2 with louvred shutters. The arches are gauged
prick and the sills are wood. The exterior chimneys are located at each gable erd,
at the Jjunction of the 1878 addition and the brick ell, and at the west end of the
brick ell. The chimney at the junction of the addition and the ell is enclosed.
The gable roof is standing seam metal with a box cornice and returns on the gable
end walls. The roof of the 1878 addition is almost flat, sloping toward the north.
Oon the south elevation and partially on the west elevation is a concrete porch with
an open deck. This is on the exposed basement level on these two elevations. A
former door in the south elevation of the brick ell has been filled in and a fram
projection with a new entrance is located just west of the junction between the mai
section and the ell. It has 1/1 windows and modern artificial siding. The 1878
addition completely fills in the angle between the main section and the brick ell.
It has two window bays on the west and three on the north, each with shutters and
2/2 sash. The current siding is modern composition material. The interior was not
accessible for this survey.

The brick smokehouse, located immediately southwest of the house, is a square
plan building with a pyramidal wood shingle roof and a single entrance on the east
elevation. The door has flush vertical boards. The smokehouse has varying bond
courses, including 6:1 and 5:1. Some repair to the brick has taken place over time,
with repointing and replacement of some sections.



8. Significance Survey No. F-2-84

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
____prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric _X community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion
__1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic ____conservation — law —__ science
"~ 1500-1599 ____ agriculture —___economics —_literature — sculpture
___1600-1699 _X__ architecture ___education —__ military ___social/
—1700-1799 ___ art —___engineering - music humanitarian
X__1800-1899 ____ commerce ____ exploration/settiement ___ philosophy — theater
1900~ ____ communications ____industry — politics/government ____ transportation
____invention ___ other (specify)
Specific dates C. 1840-50 Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _ A _ B XC _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C D _E _F _ G
Level of Significance: _ national __ state X local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The Charles F. Wenner House is a good example of the typical vernacular brick
farmhouse of the period 1830-1850. It has some modest details of the Greek Revival
in the cornice returns and simple door surround. Interior description and
documentation may enhance its 1level of architectural significance. The brick
smokehouse associated with the dwelling is also a good, typical example of the
resource type. As the two remaining buildings of the Charles F. Wenner farm, part
of "C. M. Wenner's Second Addition to Brunswick" in 1891, the property has
significance in community planning. The farm was clearly delineated separately from
the surrounding lots on a rectangle measuring approximately 500 feet by 320 feet.

The Wenner House is currently almost completely surrounded by modern development
and is clearly a remnant of the formerly rural surroundings of Brunswick. This is
the northermmost of the surviving outlying houses in the town. South of the Wenner
House are scattered groups and single houses dating from the 1890's to the 1940's
intermingled with modern buildings. It is set apart by its remaining triangular lot
of about 1.7 acres and its access drive from Maple Avenue leading to the rear
elevation. The orientation of the house to the east was apparently based on an
early farm road as shown on the 1873 map leading to the house from the present
Souder Road. This road may have been the "Charles Street" shown on the Wenner's
Second Addition plat, a road which has no current counterpart and was probably not
completed.

Charles F. Wenner (1825-1882) was the owner of several farms in the Brunswick
area and the owner of the flour mill in Brunswick. He also served as postmaster for
a short period in the mid-1850's and was a member of the House of Delegates in
1868-70. His son Charles M. Wenner laid out two additions to Brunswick, the first
in 1890, located on the southern portion of the farm between the present B and E
Streets and Petersville Road and the present Second Avenue. The Second Addition
extended from F Street to the present Souder Road. This farm was apparently known
as lLocust Grove.
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9. Major Bibliographical References

"A Driving Tour of Historic Brunswick", Brunswick History Commission, 1991.
Frederick County Landmarks Foundation Registry File # 153
Frederick County Land Records

Titus, C.0., Atlas of Frederick County, 1873
Brunswick H1story Commission. Brunswick: 100 Years of Memories, 1990.

10. Geographical Data

1.7 acres

Survey No.

F-2-85 ¢4

Acreage of nominated property

Quadrangle name __Harper's Ferry, Va., -Md., -W. Va. Quadrangle scale __1:24000
UTM References Jo NOT complete UTIM references -
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Verbal boundary description and justification
Concurrent with Tax Map 200, Parcel 1343-1344
List all states and counties for propertiei; overlapping state or county boundaries
state code county code
state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle  Janet L. Davis, Historic Sites Surveyor

organization Frederick County Planning & Zoning Dept. date December 1991

street & number 12 E. Church Street telephone 696-2958

city ortown Frederick state Maryland 21701

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

RYLAND HISTORICA! TRUST

return to: Maryland Historical Trust DHCP/DHCL
Shaw House 100 COMMUNITY PLns.
21 State Circle WNSVILLE, MD 21032-2023
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 301-514-7600

(301) 269-2438

PS-2746
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PLAQUE APPLICATION

Name of Present Owner:\Jo.mes H. 7. nr'(; Nio.r A Ip /BC/ ” Registry No:__ ! 5 3
AddfeSStZZSS N- e plr‘; ﬁ\"(’. VL e, "Br;l_,\’l.ﬂJ, w!lC k\ h/}ﬂ( ) Phone No: 1.?\5 (/’é,/é(/
Name of Property_L{/e.n e~ Fa_ryn Directions.on how to locate Property:_34/Q We st  +0

<L 177 T rn_ lef 1. Fon'i’;n'wﬁ 2a K117 A.nd. -Poi/m/u T 9469 ane,

bhet, Turen i"‘/'_(jlu‘?‘ _on m,-,wls. Ao nues, (‘nn'fl‘n P 2 bhlacks o nd
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The criteria for the registration and awarding of the Frederick County Landmarks Foundation Plaques are as follows:
Any original architectural structure that is over 100 years old, with either architectural or historic merit,
or any structure that has been maintained or returned to its original period is eligible. Alterations to the
structure should be architecturally significant or in keeping with the original period. Additions should -
preserve architectural integrity as part of the progress of the structure. :

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Type of Structure:__ b r:c. £ ¢l ‘pf C M, Date of Construction: /3 8- | Y1
Dates of later additions or modifications: |72 79 -~ L S b pecls str w(‘ju_rc Fillecd, Fo0 \?/ﬂLL.CL 4o
Description of original structure: :

. \
Description of additions or modifications: i ,_I_C‘/ \)3 S\
S\ 3 Q
— XO ) P \?/V &
.\ N\ 6~ . &~
\ . Al g
Unusual architectural features: 2 N _,\\\_
~ s 2] L ‘(
= 1 A
Vo AN
o (N o

Other buildings on property: N

. \L\

%)
Historic significance: 5 ¢
Original owner (s) and builder/architect:
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Date present owner purchased property: [- VA .

S N

Present owner’s Deed No.: Liber: /O 4 Q) SR ‘,‘;‘cﬁ'{{»”“;\ “,.
if possible, Former owner's Deed No: Liber: Folio: establishfng 100 year age of property.

This intormation as well as additional documentation of your property may be obtained from the Cleri.i of Records,
Frederick County Court House. Your deed number, liber and folio numbers also appear on your tax bill.

. S .
Restoration: In progress: Y Date completed: None:
Present condition:
Present use: Occupied:

APPLICATION FEE IS $25.00

Check made payable to Frederick County Landmarks Foundation must accompany application. [f the
application is not approved, the check will be returned. Two photographs showing the exterior of the
— front of the structure are to be sent with the application. Please send application form, check for $25.00,
and the two photographs to:
Plague Committee, Frederick County Landmarks Foundation Office / 1110 Rosemont Ave. / Frederick, Maryland 21701

ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED MUST BE FURNISHED BEFORE APPLICATION CAN BE CONSIDERED

A e /‘ ; B 1,
Signature of Applicant:J[ l-)n‘j" [{~/ /{79 ZZ Date: §-30-7 7/
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F-2-84
C.F. Wenner House

Frederick County
C.0. Titus, Atlas of Frederick County, 1873.
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C.F. Wenner House
Frederick County
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